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Grace United Methodist Church was designed by W.A. Caan, an architect from St. Louis,
Missouri. During the year 1903, the cornerstone was laid and the first unit of the pre-
sent building was erected at a cost of $55,000. Located on the northern corner of Junius
at Haskell, the first unit was L-shaped and contained a tower and steeple, two projecting
gables and a porch. In 1925 the original building was added to for $85,000. This addi-
tion changed the orientation of the sanctuary, created a square floor plan and increased
the number of gables and towers.

For architectural style, Grace Church represents one of the purest examples of
Gothic Revival in the Dallas area. Constructed primarily of brick and stone, the exterior
facades contain rich moldings and excellent ornamental stonework integrated into a light
brown brick. The tower, which contains four smaller turrets and is topped by a steeple
or spire, is the most dominant element of the church and an important symbol of the
neighborhood and Gothic Revival architecture. Both the southeast and southwest facades
are characterized by single and grouped pointed arch window and door openings. The south-
west is almost symmetrical with brisk articulation and strong rhythms established by
regular fenestration, smaller towers or turrets, projecting gables and surface pattern-
ing. The southeast facade is more jrregular with a rounded arch porch, one projecting
gable and two turrets of differing sizes.

The structure is enhanced by its original stained giass tracery windows , magnifi-
cent works that dominate the southeast and southwest facades. The fifteen major pieces
of stained glass in the sanctuary were made by the Kansas City Stained Glass Studio.

The three main pieces are located in the three projecting gables and are entitled
“THE RESURRECTION", "THE GOOD SHEPHERD", AND "GETHSEMANE".

The interior was remodled in 1925 and the directional emphasis of the sanctuary

was changed. The elaboratz stained glass windows, high vaulted ceilings, massive wooden

pews and ornate grillwork:contfaue the variety and contracts whi nathd
Revival architecture. ] ty cts which are themes of Gothic
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Grace United Methodist Church, located at the corner of Haskell Avenue and Junius Street,
has well served the East Dallas Community for 77 years. Built in 1903, Grace United Methodist

Church was one of the earliest "suburban" churches constructed in East Dallas and was estab-
lished to serve the existing residential areas as well as the rapidly developing Swiss Ave-
nue and Munger Place areas. After 77 years of service, Grace Church is one of the oldest
Methodist congregations in Dallas and is one of the purest examples of Gothic Revival
architecture in Dallas.

Grace Church, organized in 1902 through the consolidation of the Floyd Street and
Haskell Avenue Churches, has a history which dates back to 1868, when Joshua Addington
started a Sunday School in Green's Hall on Swiss Avenue. This marked the beginning of the
Dallas City Mission, and in 1973 the Floyd Street Mission was organized. The Haskell
Avenue Church, another project of the Dallas City Mission, was organized in 1875.

In the fall of 1902 Reverend L. S. Barton, pastor of Floyd Street Church, initiated
plans for the building of a new church in East Dallas. Under his leadership the first
money was raised and the location of the present property of Grace Church was purchased.

A check to Gaston and Ayres Bankers for the amount of $50.00 down payment was made,
October 18, 1902.

At the session of the North Texas Conference held at Terrell, Texas in November of
1902, Floyd Street Church and Haskell Avenue Church were combined into one charge and
Reverend P. R. Knickerbocker was appointed pastor. At a special session of the Quarterly
Conference, held December 27, 1902, an order.was passed authorizing the sale of the property
of the aforementioned churches. On March 31, 1903, at the Second Quarterly Conference, the
minutes have this record: "The committee appointed at the preceeding Quarterly Conference
to select a new name for the church, corner of Haskell and Junius Street, report the name
of same to be - Grace Church".

Only a few families constituted the membership of each of the combined churches, and
the congregation remained so small after the affected merger that a number of the members
of the First Methodist Church were induced to join. Membership since has varied, but it
reached 1,887 mmembers in 1925 and now the congregation is numbered at 390, two of which
are charter members. Members of the Grace congregation who have contributed to the devel-
opment of Dallas and the state are as follows:

R. S. Munger: developed the first deed restricted subdivision in Dallas,
Munger Place, beginning in 1903.

W. H. Lamar: "Poet Laureate" of Texas and author of the poetry book, -
"I Feel Like Wishing".

Roy dJenkins: American Consul to Mexico

J. R. Temple: Mayor of Dallas, 1947-49, and was associated with the
Southland Corporation.
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Col. Bi11 Easterwood: financial tycoon, paid $25,000 to two Frenchmen to
fly the Atlantic westward after Lindberg's famous flight.
Dr. Chess Lovern: interned at Grace in 1934 and is currently Bishop of the
Southwest Texas Conference.
Judge 0.B. Colquitt: former Governor of Texas.
Walter Temple: Imperial General of the Order of Scottish Rite.

Grace United Methodist has been a church of service to the City and the community
and continues to be so. It sponsors the "39" group which provides meals and activities
for senior citizens. The church also provides housing for kindergarten and Latin
American services, the "Lords Pantry" and the "clothes closet", which gives food and
clothing to the needy and is the meeting place for neighborhood groups and civic
organizations. During World Wars I and 11, the ladies' organization rolled bandages
for the Red Cross, provided weekly parties for the soldiers at Fort Dix and conducted
community cooking schools and gardens.

While Grace Church is not the oldest congregation in East Dallas, it is the oldest
continuing congregation. Grace and Trinity Methodist were the first "suburban" churches
to appear in Dallas while the First Methodist Church remained in downtown. Séveral
cther Methodist churches were "spin-offs" of Grace (St. John's, Munger and Highland
Park) and these new churches reduced the congregation size at Grace. As the best
example of Gothic Revival architecture in Dallas, Grace Church was built in 1903 for
a cost of $55,000 and was expanded in 1925. No other alternations have occurred and
the building is in excellent condition. It is dominated by a tower and steeple, three
gables and fifteen major pieces of stained glass. As a physical and community land-
mark, the church plans to remain in its present location, aiding in the revitalization
and stabilization of an area in rapid transition.
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